
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda
Tuesday, January 19, 2016, 7.00p

Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room
502 State St, Hood River

Suzanne VanOrman, President

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest VanOrman
III. Approval of minutes from December 15 meeting (ACTION) VanOrman
IV. Open forum for the general public VanOrman
V. Strategic planning Hummel
VI. Reports 

i. Friends update VanOrman
ii. Foundation update Snyder
iii. November and December financial statements Nielsen
iv. Director's report Nielsen

VII. Previous business
VIII.New business

i. 2014-15 audit Nielsen
ii. Increasing maximum late fine (ACTION) Nielsen
iii. Sick leave for variable-schedule employees (ACTION) Nielsen
iv. Minoru Yasui Day (ACTION) Nielsen

IX. Agenda items for next meeting VanOrman
X. Adjournment VanOrman

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session may be 
held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie Gaulke 
Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language interpretation for the hearing 
impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda, Supplementary Info

Tuesday, January 19, 2016, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Suzanne VanOrman, President

Notes prepared by Library Director Buzzy Nielsen

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest VanOrman
III. Approval of minutes from December 15 meeting (ACTION) VanOrman
Attachments:

• III. Minutes of December 15, 2015, meeting

IV. Open forum for the general public VanOrman
V. Strategic planning Hummel
Consultant Penny Hummel will discuss the strategic planning process. She particularly seeks names of 
individuals to participate in the community visioning session, which will be on Saturday, April 2nd. This 
visioning session will be a key part of involving community members. About 60 people will be invited. 
Please come prepared with names of individuals who would be good participants. Outreach Specialist 
Patty Lara-Martinez will also be at the Board meeting to help come up with names.

In addition to the visioning session, Hummel will get community input in two other ways:
• In-depth interviews with Hood River County Administrator David Meriwether, Executive 

Director of the Next Door Janet Hamada, School District Superintendent Dan Goldman, 
former mayor and owner of Animation Toolworks Arthur Babitz, and former head of the 
library PAC and current Executive Director of the Hood River Valley Residents Committee 
Heather Staten.

• Focus groups on February 8-9 with staff, seniors, migrant parents, Friends, teens, and 
Foundation & Board members.

Please consider a wide variety of people, whether library users/supporters or not, so that we can get 
a well-rounded group to help us determine the District's strategic direction.

VI. Reports 
i. Friends update VanOrman

The Friends of the Library recently gave the District $11,323 to support the following projects:
• $2899 for people counters at Hood River Library
• $2101 for a movie theater setup in the Storybook Theatre at Hood River Library
• $600 for audiobooks 
• $4,598 for the children's Summer Reading Program
• $500 from the Sydney Burkhart Memorial Fund toward the new circulation area at Hood River

Library.



• $625 for children's nonfiction materials.

These donations are in addition to what the Friends already donated this fiscal year including $1,300 
for audiobooks and $3,001 from the Sydney Burkhart Memorial for the new circulation area. To date, 
the Friends have donated $15,624 to the District.

The Hood River County Reads committee has set the schedule for their 2016 events about the 
selection Martin Marten by Brian Doyle.

• Sunday, April 17, 2.00-3.30p: Hood River County Reads kickoff
• Tuesday, 19, 3.00-7.00p: Book handouts at Cascade Locks and Parkdale
• Sunday, May 1, 2.00-3.30p: Natural history of Mt. Hood with Bill Weiler
• Thursday, May 5, 6.30-8.00p: Library book club reads Martin Marten
• Sunday, May 8 or 15, time TBD: Mt. Rescue with the Crag Rats
• Friday, May 20: Brian Doyle visits local schools
• Saturday, May 21: Field trip at Mt. Hood with Bill Weiler
• Sunday, May 22, 10.30a: Doyle meets with seniors at Down Manor
• Sunday, May 22, 2.00p: Brian Doyle's public talk

ii. Foundation update Snyder
With the start of the new year, the Foundation is ramping up planning for the 2016 Feast of Words, 
which will be on March 12 from 6.00-9.00p. The fundraising focus will be improving the children's area 
at Hood River Library including making some shelves mobile, painting, redesigning the flow of the area,
and more.

The Foundation's recent membership renewal efforts and year-end letters have proven successful. To 
date as of January 6, over $13,000 had come in from the year-end mailing.

iii. November and December financial statements Nielsen
Attachments:

• VI.iii.a. November 2015 financial statements

The December financial statements were unavailable at the time the meeting packet was distributed.

iv. Director's report Nielsen
Attachments

• VI.iv.a. December 2015 statistics
• VI.iv.b. December 2015 programs

Facilities
• We received the DVD shelving for our re-designed new items area. Once we get the new 

catalog and selfcheck stations out, the redesign will be complete. I hope to have some sort of 
ribbon-cutting event.

• The fire alarm system at Hood River Library is installed, active, and monitored. The City of 
Hood River inspected and approved it.

Page 2



Grants
• Unsolicited, we received an $830 donation from the Richard and Kathleen Nichols fund of 

Gorge Community Foundation. The money will be used to create a theater setup for movies in
the children's area of Hood River Library.

• We recently received a $3,000 grant from Special Districts Association of Oregon to fix the 
northwest area of the Hood River Library walkway, just outside the children's area, to prevent 
water backup.

Programs and services
• We held a Fine Forgiveness Week on December 14-19. Despite inclement weather, we forgave 

$536.29 in late fines.

Statistics
• Circulation of District-owned items at District locations in December circulation increases 

11% over December 2014.
• Library2Go usage increased 10% over last December.
• Program involvement increased 230% over the previous December.

VII. Previous business
VIII.New business

i. 2014-15 audit Nielsen
Attachments:

• VIII.i.a. 2014-15 audit, Letter to the governing body
• VIII.i.b. 2014-15 audit, Financial report

Tara Kamp, principal at District auditors Pauly Rogers and Co., is unable to attend the January 19 
meeting to present the audit. She hopes to attend the February meeting. I have attached the audit 
letter to the governing body and financial report for your review. If you have any question to relay to 
the auditors, I will pass them on so that she can address them during her visit. As in previous years, the
District received a clean audit.

ii. Increasing maximum late fine (ACTION) Nielsen
Attachments:

• VIII.ii. Proposed fines and fees schedule

Currently, the District charges late fines of $0.10/day with a grace period of three days. The maximum 
late fine on any given item is $1, meaning that, as long as an item is returned, the late fine will not 
exceed $1, even if the person returns the item over a month late. Staff do not feel that the $1 
maximum deters people from returning items late. We often have patrons express how low the 
number is. Therefore, I am requesting that the Board increase the maximum fine to $3. Staff feel that 
this would better encourage people to return their materials on time. An item would have to be late 
over six weeks before it would hit the $3 maximum. This maximum is still lower than the Sage default 
maximum fine of $5.00.

iii. Sick leave for variable-schedule employees (ACTION) Nielsen
Now that we have a substitute library clerk – Ann Zuehlke – we need to slightly alter how we 

Page 3



calculate sick leave accrual for staff working fewer than twenty hours per week. Before, we calculated 
the figure pro-rated based on their regularly-scheduled hours, e.g. someone working 15 hours per 
week would get 3 hours of sick leave per month (the pro-rate is based on 8 hours per month for a 
40-hour workweek). However, we now have employees who have irregular schedules. In addition, 
some part-time employees fill in for others, thus altering their hours. To solve this issue, I propose 
calculating sick leave for staff with irregular schedules on a per hour worked basis. I have calculated 
that eight sick leave hours per month based on a 40-hour workweek is approximately one sick leave 
hour per 22.5 worked. I propose amending the Personnel Policies to have this per-hour basis for 
variable hour employees. The proposed wording is italicized and underlined in the Personnel Policy 
copied below.

11.8 Sick leave
Upon employment, employees shall be granted sick leave equivalent to eight hours per month, 
prorated based on a forty-hour workweek. Sick leave will be calculated at a rate of one hour per 
22.5 worked (roughly equivalent to eight hours per month for a forty-hour workweek) for employees 
who work fewer than twenty hours a week and have variable-hour weekly schedules. Sick leave 
accrual shall be limited to four hundred hours for employees who are regularly scheduled for 
twenty hours a week or more, and capped at forty-eight hours for employees who are 
regularly scheduled for fewer than twenty hours a week.  Accrued sick leave shall not be 
compensated upon termination or death of an employee.

iv. Minoru Yasui Day (ACTION) Nielsen
Attachments:

• VIII.iv.a. Background information on Minoru Yasui
• VIII.iv.b. Background information on Minoru Yasui Day effort

As noted at the last meeting, several people are moving forward with honoring recent Presidential 
Medal of Freedom recipient Minoru Yasui, who was imprisoned in WWII for violating the wartime 
curfew for Japanese residents. Yasui was also a subject in the 2009 Oregon and Hood River County 
Reads title Stubborn Twig. Among the effort is asking the Oregon Legislature to establish a Minoru Yasui 
Day to recognize his First Amendment and civil rights advocacy. The day would be on March 28th, the 
day he was imprisoned. 

I am asking if the Board would please support this legislative effort. Yasui, a former Hood River 
resident, was a tireless advocate for First Amendment and civil rights. His work fits well with our 
District's adopted values. Several other local organizations are planning to support the legislative 
effort. I have also asked the Oregon Library Association.

Work continues on siting the tribute artwork to Minoru Yasui in the Georgiana Smith Memorial 
Gardens.

IX. Agenda items for next meeting VanOrman
• 2014-15 audit presentation by Pauly Rogers
• Strategic planning

X. Adjournment VanOrman

Page 4



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, December 15, 2015, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Suzanne VanOrman, President

Minutes prepared by Library Director Buzzy Nielsen

Present: Rachael Fox (staff), Buzzy Nielsen (staff), John Schoppert, Sara Snyder, Alexis Vaivoda, 
Suzanne VanOrman

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
President VanOrman called the meeting to order at 7.00p. Snyder moved to approve the agenda as 
presented. Vaivoda seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest VanOrman
None stated.

III. Approval of minutes from November 17, 2015 meeting (ACTION) VanOrman
Snyder moved to approve the minutes of the November 17, 2015, meeting as presented. Schoppert 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously

IV. Open forum for the general public VanOrman
No public present.

V. Reports 
i. Friends update VanOrman

There were no further Friends updates other than the written report.

ii. Foundation update Snyder
There were no further Foundation updates other than the written report.

iii. October and November financial statements Nielsen
The Board reviewed the October 2015 financial statements and had no questions. One board 
member inquired about the collection of previous years' taxes, which was at 77%of the budgeted 
amount for 2015-16 year-to-date. Nielsen explained that, unlike the current year taxes, previous year 
taxes come in erratically throughout the year and are difficult estimate for budgeting. The November 
2015 financial statements were unavailable at the meeting.

iv. Director's report Nielsen
In addition to his written report, Nielsen noted the following:

• The fire alarm system at Hood River Library is installed, active, and monitored. The final step 
is to have the building inspector sign off on it, which should happen with the next two weeks. 
Staff will be trained on its use.



• Nielsen is seeking a new company to work on Hood River Library's automatic door openers 
• The Hood River Library has been experimenting with new weather striping on its main double

doors, but the solution doesn't seem to be working. Staff will investigate other options.
• Nielsen submitted a SDAO safety grant. This year, the grants focus on water intrusion. He 

applied for money to once again redo the area outside the children's library, re-grade it, and 
install more drainage. The estimated cost is $5,750.

• The City of Hood River inspected the sidewalk in front of Hood River Library that was 
replaced as part of the State Street urban renewal project. They determined that the cracks 
were typical for sidewalk pours of this type and do not recommend repairing them.

• The District's new Cataloging Specialist is Anna Lim. By combing two positions, Amber 
Strangstalien also is now a full-time Public Service Clerk. 

• The District hired Ann Zuehlke, library aide at Hood River Valley High School, as a substitute 
Public Service Clerk.

• Fine Forgiveness Week started on December 15 and will go through the 19th. During this time,
the District will forgive any late fines on items and not charge for replacement library cards.

• Nielsen met with a group honoring Minoru Yasui, recent winner of the Presidential Medal of 
Freedom. Nielsen will move forward with the plans to site a memorial in the Gardens.

• There have been some leaks in the Hood River Library ceiling. They originated from the 
rooftop air ducts, which are getting sealed soon.

VI. Previous business
i. Christmas and New Year's Eve holidays (ACTION) Nielsen

Snyder moved to amend the Personnel Policies to make December 24 and 31 half-holidays for staff.  
Vaivoda seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

ii. Strategic plan schedule Nielsen
Nielsen distributed an updated schedule from consultant Penny Hummel showing a timeline of the 
strategic planning process. The Board approved of the timeline. Nielsen and Fox met with Hummel 
late the previous week. Nielsen presented a list of people for the consultant to interview individually, 
which the Board generally approved, although they woudl like to see a Latino. The Board also asked 
when Hummel will be working with them. Nielsen will ask.

VII. New business
i. Board Governance Policy revision (ACTION) Nielsen

The Board discussed amendments to the Board Governance Policy offering clarifications regarding 
current Board practices, as explained in the meeting notes. It was noted that the resolution text 
included the wrong date of approval. Nielsen will fix this. Snyder moved to adopt Resolution 2015-
16.07, amending the Board Governance Policy. Sheppard seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

ii. Gardens maintenance and funding (ACTION) Nielsen
The Board reviewed the proposal from Walker's Landscape Maintenance to care for the Georgiana 
Smith Memorial Gardens in 2016. The bid was for $14,820. The staff have been pleased with the 
firm's work. Board members commented that they'd like to find a way to get the community more 
involved in helping fund Gardens maintenance. Nielsen noted that the City, Parks and Recreation 
District, and others are going to do a parks and recreation master plan soon, in which the District will
be involved. Snyder moved to hire Walker's Landscape Maintenance to maintain the Georgiana Smith 

Page 2



Memorial Gardens in 2016 for $14,820. Schoppert seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

VIII.Agenda items for next meeting VanOrman
• 2014-15 audit presentation
• Strategic planning session

IX. Adjournment VanOrman
The meeting adjourned at 7.37p.

Page 3



Hood River County Library District:  Brainstorming retreat participants  
(1/16)  

BUSINESS COMMUNITY
Small business owners
Larger business reps
Business organizations  (C of C) 
News media
Physicians

NONPROFITS
Social service organizations
Youth organizations  
Arts/Cultural/Historical
Health services
Religious
Senior center 

EDUCATION
Pre-K
K-12
Higher Ed

GOVERNMENT
City
County
Port 
Economic Development
Partners (libraries)

AGE/LIFE STAGE
Teens
Twenty-somethings
Parents with young children
Parents with school age children
Adults with no kids 
Retirees
Older seniors 

GEOGRAPHY
Hood River
Parkdale
Cascade Locks 
Odell
Other communities
Unincorporated areas

DEMOGRAPHIC/MISC.  
Latino
Native American  
Other racial/ethnic diversity
Disabled/Special needs  
Newcomers
Longtimers 
Library non-users
Educational levels 
Socio-economic



















Circulation, 2015-16

Hood River
Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Audio 420 402 393 509 401 425 2,550
Video 1,361 1,464 1,652 1,719 1,527 1,974 9,697

Fiction 1,201 1,082 1,009 993 863 954 6,102
Large print 54 67 84 117 107 65 494
Nonfiction 928 887 885 852 767 841 5,160

Spanish 92 69 79 99 79 58 476
Magazines 188 239 190 231 262 265 1,375

New books 961 866 863 862 822 854 5,228
Graphic novels 98 98 74 69 75 52 466

Devices 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 29 25 24 24 28 20 150

Young adult collection 396 362 232 191 179 215 1,575
Children's audio 356 298 213 236 253 228 1,584

Children's new books 414 418 418 360 344 337 2,291
Board Books 299 221 244 205 172 215 1,356

Children video 954 794 672 709 667 753 4,549
Children's fiction 1,288 962 714 762 739 631 5,096

Children's nonfiction 538 419 401 396 389 345 2,488
Picture books 1,051 970 809 756 703 533 4,822

Readers 405 363 287 382 353 326 2,116
Holiday books 22 6 80 177 237 362 884

Children's graphic novels 217 289 147 153 173 154 1,133
Children's Spanish 159 143 91 144 100 116 753

Theme bags & book kits 16 15 23 20 18 20 112

TOTAL 11,447 10,459 9,584 9,966 9,258 9,743 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,457

Sep



Cascade Locks
Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Audio 3 2 5 8 6 5 29

Video 71 22 42 33 23 36 227

Fiction 40 20 23 30 10 22 145

Large print 1 0 0 0 0 1 2

Nonfiction 21 28 15 27 3 7 101

Spanish 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Magazines 2 8 7 6 3 4 30

New books 9 13 11 28 8 9 78

Graphic novels 4 1 5 1 2 2 15

Devices 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Young adult collection 8 6 10 3 0 5 32

Children's audio 3 0 2 0 3 0 8

Children's new books 3 3 2 11 1 1 21

Board Books 1 1 6 2 6 5 21

Children video 31 17 27 26 14 37 152

Children's fiction 15 3 5 3 10 13 49

Children's nonfiction 11 6 12 6 2 8 45

Picture books 16 1 10 1 18 13 59

Readers 2 2 0 6 11 15 36

Holiday books 1 0 0 0 6 20 27

Children's graphic novels 15 1 12 9 8 4 49

Children's Spanish 0 1 6 0 1 0 8

Theme bags & book kits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 257 136 200 200 135 207 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,135

Sep



Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Audio 2 0 3 5 1 2 13

Video 83 43 31 18 42 54 271

Fiction 79 68 50 54 18 34 303

Large print 5 6 15 16 4 4 50

Nonfiction 26 12 22 23 13 11 107

Spanish 9 12 10 9 4 4 48

Magazines 6 9 1 0 2 0 18

New books 23 24 5 12 17 0 81

Graphic novels & comics 1 0 1 0 0 0 2

Devices 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 1 0 2 0 0 0 3

Young adult collection 12 9 3 2 1 2 29

Children's audio 2 3 3 0 1 3 12

Children's new books 2 0 3 0 0 0 5

Board Books 16 19 7 12 6 6 66

Children video 32 18 21 30 22 34 157

Children's fiction 5 43 25 18 8 5 104

Children's nonfiction 10 14 15 42 18 18 117

Picture books 48 31 48 42 15 12 196

Readers 11 8 5 11 14 31 80

Holiday books 2 3 4 1 1 13 24

Children's graphic novels 13 10 8 7 1 7 46

Children's Spanish 1 7 6 6 3 3 26

Theme bags 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 389 339 288 308 191 243 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,758

Parkdale
Sep



Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Audio 425 404 401 522 408 432 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,592

Video 1,515 1,529 1,725 1,770 1,592 2,064 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,195

Fiction 1,320 1,170 1,082 1,077 891 1,010 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,550

Large print 60 73 99 133 111 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 546

Nonfiction 975 927 922 902 783 859 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,368

Spanish 101 81 89 108 83 62 0 0 0 0 0 0 524

Magazines 196 256 198 237 267 269 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,423

New books 993 903 879 902 847 863 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,387

Graphic novels & comics 103 99 80 70 77 54 0 0 0 0 0 0 483

Devices 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 30 26 26 24 28 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 154

Young adult collection 416 377 245 196 180 222 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,636

Children's audio 361 301 218 236 257 231 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,604

Children's new books 419 421 423 371 345 338 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,317

Board Books 316 241 257 219 184 226 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,443

Children video 1,017 829 720 765 703 824 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,858

Children's fiction 1,308 1,008 744 783 757 649 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,249

Children's nonfiction 559 439 428 444 409 371 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,650

Picture books 1,115 1,002 867 799 736 558 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,077

Readers 418 373 292 399 378 372 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,232

Holiday books 25 9 84 178 244 395 0 0 0 0 0 0 935

Children's graphic novels 245 300 167 169 182 165 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,228

Children's Spanish 160 151 103 150 104 119 0 0 0 0 0 0 787

Theme bags 16 15 23 20 18 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 112

TOTAL 12,093 10,934 10,072 10,474 9,584 10,193 0 0 0 0 0 0 63,350

Districtwide
Sep



Interlibrary loans, 2015-16

Hood River
Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Checked out by Sage 861 768 861 946 797 967 5,200

Borrowed from Sage 795 668 684 716 713 832 4,408

Sage difference 66 100 177 230 84 135 0 0 0 0 0 0 792

Cascade Locks
Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Checked out by Sage 39 55 54 59 43 53 303

Borrowed from Sage 62 47 53 75 43 62 342

Sage difference -23 8 1 -16 0 -9 0 0 0 0 0 0 -39

Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Checked out by Sage 35 37 35 40 22 36 205

Borrowed from Sage 16 19 23 28 16 23 125

Sage difference 19 18 12 12 6 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 80

Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Checked out by Sage 935 860 950 1,045 862 1,056 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,708

Borrowed from Sage 873 734 760 819 772 917 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,875

Sage difference 62 126 190 226 90 139 0 0 0 0 0 0 833

Checked out by non-Sage 29 20 27 27 21 19 143

Borrowed from non-Sage 4 6 11 7 0 7 35

Non-Sage difference 25 14 16 20 21 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 108

Sep

Sep

Parkdale
Sep

Districtwide
Sep



Computer use, 2015-16

Computer sessions
Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Hood River 1,018 924 850 768 535 565 4,661

Cascade Locks 129 135 135 112 62 70 644

39 22 36 23 24 11 155

TOTAL 1,185 1,082 1,021 904 621 647 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,459

Sep

Parkdale



Electronic resource use, 2015-16

Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Ancestry

Searches 476 195 508 78 140 3 1,400

Item views 274 172 258 32 31 0 767

Auto Repair Ref Ctr 7 4 0 16 0 13 40

Facebook
Posts 5 13 12 21 15 20 86
Post reach 830 2,466 2,792 1,756 3,618 3,315 14,777
Post engagement 56 219 297 93 468 268 1,401
Total likes 1,022 1,044 1,056 1,068 1,078 1,085 N/A

Gale databases
In library 38 1 0 41 202 158 440
Remote 43 1 3 4 45 2 98

Heritage Quest
Searches 22 30 46 9 148 0 255

Item views 13 30 39 6 129 0 217

Visits 1,019 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,019
Unique visitors 741 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

1,882 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,882

Posts 4 7 4 4 3 3 25

Post feedback 7 24 20 20 18 12 101

Followers 110 121 127 132 142 152 110

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Library2go

372 327 301 375 354 378 2,107

347 286 311 372 348 301 1,965

Newsletter
Subscribers 680 680 680 680 680 680 680
Messages sent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Opened 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Click rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Registrations 1 16 2 10 2 14 45

Logins 2 157 9 31 5 31 235

514 20 2,805 3,521 2,028 2,512 11,400

Twitter
Tweets 5 12 6 8 7 7 45
Tweet impressions 873 2,430 1,402 1,011 1,589 1,982 9,287
Mentions 2 1 1 0 3 3 10
Total followers 417 435 443 447 449 453 N/A

Sep

hoodriverlibrary.org

Pageviews

Instagram

LearningExpress

ebooks

Audiobooks

Pronunciator

TumbleBooks



Patron statistics, 2015-16

Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Used card in last month 2,089 2,020 1,897 1,905 1,903 1,834 N/A

New patrons 134 138 124 104 94 86 0 0 0 0 0 0 680

Hood River 93 108 95 74 65 59 494

Cascade Locks 17 2 1 5 3 2 30
Odell 3 5 0 0 3 2 13

5 7 8 1 7 6 34
MIX libraries 14 12 14 21 16 14 91
Sage libraries 1 1 5 3 0 2 12
Passport libraries 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 1 3 1 0 0 1 6

Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Circulation 423 349 402 507 406 612 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,699

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 1 0 0 0 4 5

Fort Vancouver 409 333 376 481 381 577 2,557

11 2 19 24 11 31 98
Washington Co. 3 13 7 2 14 0 39
Renewals 250 162 182 244 209 327 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,374

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fort Vancouver 248 162 165 237 191 318 1321

1 0 1 7 18 9 36
Washington Co. 1 0 16 0 0 0
TOTALS 673 511 584 751 615 939 0 0 0 0 0 0 4073

Sep

Parkdale

Metropolitan Interlibrary eXchange (MIX) statistics, 2015-16

Sep

First circs

Camas
Clackamas Co.

Multnomah Co.

Camas

Clackamas Co.

Multnomah Co.



Program statistics, 2015-16

Jul Aug Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD
Adult programs

Number 6 8 12 13 12 11 62

Attendees 124 248 349 383 916 390 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,410

Kids programs
Number 61 36 19 25 21 26 188

Attendees 4,726 2,157 1,632 1,176 1,027 1,840 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,558

Teen programs
Number 12 16 13 16 12 4 73

Attendees 162 326 488 649 439 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,076

TOTAL
Number 79 60 44 54 45 41 0 0 0 0 0 0 323

Attendees 5,012 2,731 2,469 2,208 2,382 2,242 0 0 0 0 0 0 17,044

Sep



Program statistics, December (2015-16)

Event Cosponsor(s) Location Date Attendees
ADULT PROGRAMS

HR Library Dec 3 3
Odell Dec 3,7,10 65

Libraries of Eastern Oregon HR Library Dec 5 20
Libraries of Eastern Oregon CL Library Dec 5 5

Hood River Dec 7 1
Friends of the Library holiday potluck Friends HRV Adult Center Dec 8 60

The Gorge Dec 9 200

Libraries of Eastern Oregon PK Library Dec 12 12
Movie screening of Home Alone Port of Cascade Locks CL Marine Park Dec 22 24

Adult total 390
KIDS PROGRAMS

Learning Farm Preschool Hood River Dec 1,8,15,22,29 225
The Gorge Dec 2,9,16,23,30 1,250
Hood River Dec 2,9,16,23 30
HR Library Dec 3,10 58
HR Library Dec 3,10 16

Baby sign class HR Library Dec 3 6
Cascade Locks Festival of Lights CL Library Dec 6 50

Mid-Valley Elementary School Odell Dec 7 45
Jamie's Day Care Hood River Dec 10 10

The Next Door winter gathering The Next Door, Inc. HR Library Dec 16 25

Solstice party HR Library Dec 19 80

Cookies and books  CL Library Dec 19 32

Lego Club PK Library Dec 22 13

Kids total 1,840
TEEN PROGRAMS
Young Writer's Club HR Library Dec 4,11,18 7
Literary Trivia Challenge meeting Dec 19 5

Teen total 12

Book club: The Light Between the Oceans
Odell Book Mobile/Library @ Zumba Hood River Providence Hospital

St. Francis House
The Exquisite Envelope with Peggy Dills Kelter
Aluminum Embossing with Julie Zapien
Author Reading: Dale Brandenburger

Recursos Informativos radio show Radio Tierra
Anonymous AL-ANON Family Groups

Aluminum Embossing with Julie Zapien

Outreach storytime: Learning Farm Preschool
La Hora Infanil radio show Radio Tierra 
Outreach: Rinconcito trailer park
Storytime (preschool)
Storytime (toddler)

City of Cascade Locks
Gorge Family Fun

Outreach storytime: Mid-Valley Elementary Kindergarten
Outreach storytime: Jamie's day care in west trailer park









































































































Fines & Fees Schedule

Materials charges

• Late items - $0.10 per day, with a three-day grace period and a $31 per item maximum.
• Lost or irreparably damaged items - Retail cost of item + $5 processing fee. Patrons may bring in a good 

identical copy of an item to have the retail cost waived. They will still be charged the processing fee.
• Damaged items that are repairable - $10 or the cost of the repair, whichever is higher.
• Destroyed media case - Audiobooks, $10, movies, $5, or the replacement cost, whichever is higher.
• Lost media part (e.g. disc from an audiobook), if individually replaceable - $10 or the replacement cost, 

whichever is higher.
• Damaged media cover art: $5 or the replacement cost, whichever is higher.
• Damaged barcode or spine label: $1.

Library card charges

• Temporary/non-resident cards - $20 for 3 months or $80/year.
• Replacement card - $1.

Service charges

• Earphones: $1
• Mailings - $1 plus cost of postage.
• Meeting room use - Free (non-commercial use); $20/hour 3-hour minimum (commercial use).
• Out-of-Sage interlibrary loans - $3 plus any fees charged by lending library.
• Photocopies and printouts (black and white) - $0.15/side.
• Printouts (color) - $0.50/side.
• Public records requests - Please see Public Records Policy.
• Research requests for out-of-county residents: First 15 minutes free; $50/hour thereafter, charged in 

15-minute increments.
• Returned checks - $35.



Resolution No. 2015-16.08

Resolution revising fines & fees schedule

WHEREAS, the District wishes to increase the maximum late fine to encourage people to return 
items on time;

Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that the Hood River County Library District Board of 
Directors establishes the fines & fees schedule as amended at their January 19th meeting and 
attached to this resolution.

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Hood River County Library District this 19th day of 
January, 2016.

ATTEST:

____________________________ ____________________________
Suzanne VanOrman, President Buzzy Nielsen, Library Director



	  

Minoru Yasui Background 11.01.14                                                      myasuitribute.info@gmail.com 

Minoru Yasui – Background 
 

On March 28, 1942, at 8 p.m., Minoru Yasui took a three-hour walk in downtown Portland that 
ended with his arrest — for breaking a curfew imposed on all persons of Japanese ancestry. Never 
mind that Mr. Yasui was an Oregon born U.S. citizen, a graduate of the University of Oregon, the 
first Japanese American graduate of the University of Oregon School of Law, and a proud American. 
To the U.S. government, through Executive Order 9066, he was simply a criminal — for breaking an 
ethnically based curfew. Indeed, Mr. Yasui was convicted for this act of defiance, and his conviction 
was ultimately upheld by the Supreme Court of the United States.  

The Minoru Yasui Tribute Project is composed of a dedicated group of attorneys, activists and other 
community leaders. Its mission is to honor and carry on the legacy of its namesake, a man who 
courageously stood up for 120,000 Americans of Japanese ancestry, and for many, many others — a 
man who embraced justice and equality for all Americans, most dramatically demonstrated by 
courageously standing up for 120,000 Americans of Japanese ancestry, but also embracing equality 
far beyond the Japanese American community by fighting for the rights of Latinos, African 
Americans, youth, people with disabilities and many other groups.  He dedicated his life to 
protecting and advancing civil liberties for all Americans, particularly disadvantaged communities of 
color from many walks of life.  

Minoru Yasui (Min) was born in Hood River, Oregon, in 1916, and became the first Japanese 
American member of the Oregon State Bar. He was also the first to violate the discriminatory 
military orders – the curfew being the first such order, proclaimed on March 24, 1942.  As a young 
attorney, his firm belief was to bring a test case to vindicate his rights and those of all American 
citizens. The Federal District Court of Oregon, however, ruled otherwise, and Yasui spent nine 
months in solitary confinement awaiting his appeal to the U.S. Supreme Court. On June 21, 1943, the 
High Court ruled in Yasui v. United States that the U.S. government did have the right to restrict the 
lives of American citizens—based on race—in the name of “military necessity.”  

Yasui’s fervor for justice was undeterred. He dedicated his entire life to building communities and 
furthering human and civil rights (please see attached Biographical Timeline). His leadership and 
activism spanned six decades from 1931 to 1986 and included, inter alia: 

! Founding member of the Mid-Columbia (1931, Hood River, OR) chapter of the Japanese 
American Citizens League (JACL); founding member and officer of the Mile High 
(Denver, CO) chapter and Mountain-Plains District; member of the National Council. 

! Scoutmaster of multi-racial Boy Scout Troops in Chicago, IL and Denver, CO; serving in 
various offices on the local and district level from 1945-1986. 

! In 1946, he helped found the Urban League of Denver (addressing African American 
concerns) and serving on its board until 1954. 

! In 1963 helping to found the Latin American Research and Service Agency (Colorado 
Latino leadership, advocacy and research organization). 

! In 1968, he helped to organize Denver Native American United (now called Denver Indian 
Center) and served as their consultant until his death in 1986. 

! Lobbying against legislation introduced in the Colorado General Assembly to prohibit 
aliens from owning land (1945); lobbying for and files claims for Japanese Americans 
under the Evacuation Claims Act of 1948; lobbying for passage of the McCarran-Walter 
Act of 1952 (allowing for US citizenship and immigration of Japanese nationals previously 
prohibited from becoming naturalized). 



	  

Minoru Yasui Background 11.01.14  myasuitribute.info@gmail.com 
 

! Serving on the Denver Commission on Community Relations from 1959 to 1967; first as 
commissioner, then elected Vice-Chair and Chair; in 1967 appointed by the mayor as 
Executive Director, where he initiated various entities: Commissions on Youth, Aging, and 
Human Services; the Council on Disabled; and the Office of Citizen Response 

! From 1970’s to his death: Chair of Denver Anti-Crime Council (preventative and 
rehabilitation projects; promotion of police-community relations); Board member of 
Employ-Ex (ex-offenders), member of the National Association of Police-Community 
Relations Officials. 

! Among other numerous community leadership roles and involvement include: 
- ACTION’s volunteer programs, Director;  
- American Red Cross, Mile-High Chapter, Board member;  
- “Leadership Denver,” executive committee member;  
- Metropolitan YMCA of Denver, Board member;  
- Colorado Humanities Program, board chair; Denver Public Schools Advisory 

Commission on Equality and Educational Opportunity;  
- Denver Opportunity (War on Poverty), board member and chair; 
- Mayor’s Task Force on Refugee Affairs, member;  
- Colorado Alliance of Pacific/Asian Americans, board member; 
- “People-to-People,” international friendship organization, board chair and member; 
- Colorado Council on International Organizations, board member; 
- Colorado State Advisory Committee of the US Commission on Civil Rights, board 

member and chair;  
- National Association of Human Rights Workers, member;  
- International Association of Human Rights Agencies, member. 

Yasui also served as chair of the National JACL Committee on Redress from 1981 until his death in 
1986, where he committed his heart and soul to that pursuit. 

In the early 1980s documents discovered in the national archives formed the basis for reopening his 
World War II case under the procedure of coram nobis. His petition alleged governmental 
misconduct, and fraud upon the courts.  In 1984, Yasui’s case was heard in the Federal District Court 
of Oregon, which vacated (overturned) Yasui’s 1942 wartime conviction, but denied his request for 
an evidentiary hearing regarding the alleged governmental misconduct.  While Yasui’s request for 
such a hearing was on appeal, he succumbed to cancer on November 12, 1986. 

His legacy of public service lives on with the Minoru Yasui Community Volunteer Award (Denver) 
in recognition of his tireless spirit of volunteerism, in the Minoru Yasui Inn of Court, (American Inns 
of Court are designed to improve the skills, professionalism and ethics of the bench and bar, bringing 
together judges, lawyers, and in some cases, law professors and students), and at the University of 
Oregon School of Law “Minoru Yasui Endowment for Human and Civil Rights Law, ” among other 
activities. 

Today he remains a role model for activism to promote equity for all communities across this 
country. While multi-racial/ethnic and cross-cultural collaborations as those Minoru Yasui undertook 
may seem common place today, Yasui was decades ahead of his time and a true leader in laying the 
foundation for how we think about and go about that work.  

PRESIDENTIAL MEDAL OF FREEDOM 
One specific objective of the Minoru Yasui Tribute Project is to seek the Presidential Medal of 
Freedom to recognize Yasui’s extraordinary commitment as an outspoken leader and advocate for 
community service, human and civil rights, and redress. To that end, the Tribute Project sought a 
resolution from the National Japanese American Citizens League (JACL) to support Minoru Yasui’s 
nomination, which was passed at the national organization’s annual convention in July, 2014. Since 



	  

Minoru Yasui Background 11.01.14  myasuitribute.info@gmail.com 
 

that time, JACL’s Executive Director, Priscilla Ouchida, has submitted a letter to the White House 
Office of Public Engagement nominating Minoru Yasui for Presidential Medals of Freedom in 2014.  

The Minoru Yasui Tribute committees are being organized, and their focus is on his life-time of 
achievements. The committees are seeking endorsements from national organizations, congressional 
delegations, key state officials (members of Congress and state and local leaders), and key state 
organizations. In addition, State/Regional Minoru Yasui Tribute committees may be organizing 
events in 2015 to increase public awareness and education about Yasui’s achievements as a patriot, 
activist, and leader.  

 

 



Minoru Yasui Day bill
To commemorate the human and civil rights legacy of an  
outstanding Oregonian and American hero who was awarded 
a 2015 Presidential Medal of Freedom, the highest  
civilian award in the country.

Designating March 28 of each year as  
Minoru Yasui Day in the state of Oregon.

v Minoru Yasui was born 100 years ago, in 1916, in Hood 
River, Oregon, son of Japanese immigrant parents. He was 
the first Japanese American to graduate from the University 
of Oregon School of Law, and the first Japanese American 
member of the Oregon State Bar. 

v On March 28, 1942, in Portland, Oregon, he deliberately 
violated a military curfew imposed upon all persons of Japa-
nese ancestry under Executive Order 9066 – which led to the 
incarceration of over 120,000 Japanese Americans during 
World War II. He challenged the discriminatory curfew in 
order to initiate a test case in court.

v He spent 9 months in solitary confinement at the Mult-
nomah County Jail as he appealed his case to the U.S.  
Supreme Court. He was released from jail in 1943, only to be 
sent to the Minidoka War Relocation Camp in Idaho. 

v After the war, he moved to Denver, Colorado, where he 
continued to fight for human and civil rights of all people. 
In the 1970s-80s, he spearheaded the national movement 
for redress: an official apology and reparations for Japanese 
Americans imprisoned in the World War II camps. 

v In 1983, he returned to Portland to reopen his wartime 
case in the U.S. District Court of Oregon. While his convic-
tion was vacated,  the court denied his request for an eviden-
tiary hearing, which he appealed. His case was pending in the 
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals when he died in 1986.

v Minoru Yasui is buried in his beloved hometown of 
Hood River, Oregon. 

On November 24, 2015  
President Barak Obama said, 
as he awarded a posthumous  

Presidential Medal of Freedom  
to Minoru Yasui:  

 

“Today Min’s legacy has never been 

more important.  It is 

a call to our national conscience,  

a reminder of our enduring 

obligation to be the land of the free 

and the home of the brave,  

an America worthy of his sacrifices.”

Oregon should be proud
to recognize its own native son!

   For more information about Minoru Yasui please see www.minoruyasuitribute.org

   For more information about the Minoru Yasui Day bill please contact: 
   Kimberly McCullough,  Legislative Director, ACLU of Oregon, kmccullough@aclu-or.org (503) 810-6939


